UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT F E LO NY
EASTERN DISTRICT OF LOUISIANA »

INDICTMENT FOR CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT SEX TRAFFICKING,
SEX TRAFFICKING AND TRANSPORTATION FOR PROSTITUTION

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA e CRIMINAL NO.:
V. * SECTION:

GRANYVILLE ROBINSON, * VIOLATIONS: 18 U.S.C. § 15%4(c)

aka “Bear” 18 U.S.C. § 1591(a)

aka “HB” * 18 U.S.C. § 1591(b)
DUANE PHILLIPS, 18 U.S.C. § 2421

aka “P-nut” *
ANTHONY ELLIS,

aka “Anthony Deshun Lloyd” *

aka “Animal”

aka “AD” *

* * *
The Grand Jury charges:
COUNT 1

(Conspiracy to commit sex trafficking by force, fraud, or coercion)
Beginning on or about May 20, 2013 and continuing through on or about December 20,
2013, within the Eastern District of Louisiana and elsewhere, GRANVILLE ROBINSON, aka
“Bear” aka “HB,” DUANE PHILLIPS, aka “P-nut,” and ANTHONY ELLIS, aka “Anthony
Deshun Lloyd” aka “Animal” aka “AD,” conspired, combined, confederated and agreed with
each other and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, to knowingly, in and affecting

interstate and foreign commerce, recruit, entice, harbor, transport, provide, obtain, and maintain




by any means several adult females, and did benefit financially from participation in a venture
which recruited, enticed, harbored, transported, provided, obtained, and maintained by any
means several adult females, knowing and in reckless disregard of the fact that means of force,
threats of force, fraud, and coercion, or any combination thereof, would be used to cause several
adult females to engage in commercial sex acts, in violation of Title 18, United States Code,
Sections 1591(a)(1) and (a)(2); all in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1594(c).

COUNT 2
(Sex trafficking by force, fraud, or coercion)

Beginning on or about May 20, 2013 and continuing through on or about July 2, 2013, in
the Eastern District of Louisiana and elsewhere, the defendant, GRANVILLE ROBINSON,
aka “Bear” aka “HB,” in and affecting interstate and foreign commerce, did knowingly recruit,
entice, harbor, transport, provide, obtain, and maintain by any means a person, D.S., and did
benefit financially from participation in a venture which recruited, enticed, harbored, transported,
provided, obtained, and maintained by any means a person, D.S., knowing and in reckless
disregard of the fact that means of force, threats of force, fraud, and coercion, and any
combination théreof, would be used to cause D.S., to engage in a commercial sex act, in
violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1591(a)(1), (a)(2), and (b)(1).

COUNT 3
(Sex trafficking by force, fraud, or coercion)

Beginning on or about June 2013 and continuing through on or about July 2, 2013, in the
Eastern District of Louisiana and elsewhere, Defendant, DUANE PHILLIPS, aka “P-nut,” in
and affecting interstate and foreign commerce, did knowingly recruit, entice, harbor, transport,
provide, obtain, and maintain by any means a person, A.C., and did benefit financially from

participation in a venture which recruited, enticed, harbored, transported, provided, obtained, and




maintained by any means a person, A.C., knowing and in reckless disregard of the fact that

means of force, threats of force, fraud, and coercion, and any combination thereof, would be used
to cause A.C., to engage in a commercial sex act, all in violation of Title 18, United States Code,
Sections 1591(a)(1), (a)(2), and (b)(1).

COUNT 4
(Transportation for prostitution)

Beginning on or about May 20, 2013 and continuing through on or about July 2, 2013, in
the Eastern District of Louisiana and elsewhere, GRANVILLE ROBINSON, aka “Bear,” aka
“HB,” did knowingly transport an individual, D.S., in interstate and foreign commerce with
intent that such individual engage in prostitution, in violation of Title 18, United States Code,
Section 2421.

COUNT 5
(Transportation for prostitution)

Beginning on or about June 2013 and continuing through on or about July 2, 2013, in the
Eastern District of Louisiana and elsewhere, DUANE PHILLIPS, aka “P-nut,” did knowingly
transport an individual, A.C., in interstate and foreign commerce with intent that such individual
engage in prostitution, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2421.

NOTICE OF SEX TRAFFICKING FORFEITURE

1. The allegations of Counts 1 through 3 of this Indictment are realleged and
incorporated by reference as though set forth fully herein for the purpose of alleging forfeiture to
the United States of America pursuant to the provisions of Title 18, United States Code, Section
1594(d).

2 As a result of the offenses alleged in Counts 1 through 3, GRANVILLE

ROBINSON, aka “Bear” aka “HB,” DUANE PHILLIPS, aka “P-nut,” and ANTHONY



ELLIS, aka “Anthony Deshun Lloyd” aka “Animal” aka “AD,” shall forfeit to the United States

pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 1594(d), any and all property constituting or

derived from any proceeds the defendants obtained directly or indirectly as a result of the said

violations and any and all property used or intended to be used in any manner or part to commit

and to facilitate the commission of the violations alleged in Counts 1 through 3 of this

Indictment.

3, If any of the property subject to forfeiture pursuant to Paragraph 2 of this Notice

of Forfeiture, as a result of any act or omission of the defendants:

a.

b.

cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;

has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third person;
has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the Court;

has been substantially diminished in value; or

has been commingled with other property which cannot be subdivided
without difficulty;

it is the intent of the United States, pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, Section 853(p), to

seek forfeiture of any other property of said defendants up to the value of the above forfeitable

property.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1594(d).



NOTICE OF TRANSPORTATION FOR
PROSTITUTION FORFEITURE

1 The allegations of Counts 4 and 5 of this Indictment are realleged and
incorporated by reference as though set forth fully herein for the purpose of alleging forfeiture to
the United States of America pursuant to the provisions of Title 18, United States Code, Section
2428.

2. As a result of the offenses alleged in Counts 4 and 5, GRANVILLE
ROBINSON, aka “Bear” aka “HB,” and DUANE PHILLIPS, aka “P-nut,” shall forfeit to the
United States pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 2428, any and all property
constituting or derived from any proceeds the defendants obtained directly or indirectly as a
result of the said violations and any and all property used or intended to be used in any manner
or part to commit and to facilitate the commission of the violations alleged in Counts 4 and 5 of
this Indictment.

. If any of the property subject to forfeiture pursuant to Paragraph 2 of this Notice

of Forfeiture, as a result of any act or omission of the defendants:

a. cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;

b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third person;

& has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the Court;

d. has been substantially diminished in value; or

& has been commingled with other property which cannot be subdivided

without difficulty;



it is the intent of the United States, pursuant to Title 21, United States Code, Section 853(p), to

seek forfeiture of any other property of said defendants up to the value of the above forfeitable
property.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2428.
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